
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Jonathon Partridge 

direct line 0300 300 4634 

date 03 October 2013 

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 
 

 

SPECIAL SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 

Tuesday, 15 October 2013 2.00 p.m. 
 

Venue at 

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs D McVicar (Chairman), A R Bastable (Vice-Chairman), 
Mrs R B Gammons, Ms A M W Graham, R W Johnstone, K C Matthews, 
T Nicols, B Saunders and P Williams 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
R D Berry, D Bowater, Mrs C F Chapman MBE, D Jones, A Shadbolt and 
M A Smith] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members. 
 

2. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip 
in relation to any agenda item. 
 

3. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

4. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

5. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. Call-In 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2. 
 

7. Requested Items 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 

 
REPORTS 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

8 Incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
To receive a report on incidents of anti-social behaviour in 
Central Bedfordshire as requested at a previous meeting.  
 

*  3 - 14 

 



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 15 October 2013 

Subject: ASB Report 

Report of: Cllr Brian Spurr, Executive Member for Sustainable Communities - 
Services 

Summary: The report provides information on numbers of incidents of ASB in Central 
Bedfordshire and an overview of how the Council and key partners 
address ASB in Central Bedfordshire  

 

 

Advising Officer: Marcel Coiffait, Community Services Director.  

Contact Officer: Jeanette Keyte, Head of Community Safety 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All  

Function of: Executive  

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

Reducing Anti Social Behaviour (ASB)  is a priority in the Medium Term Plan with the 
aim of decreasing levels of ASB from 2011/2012 recorded incident figures by 10% to 
2016. 

Financial: 

1. There are no direct financial implications from this report. 

Legal: 

2. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a statutory duty on the 
Council: without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the 
duty of each authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the 
likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it 
reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.  Reducing ASB is part 
of the council’s statutory duty. 

Risk Management: 

3. ASB is a key community safety concern for the residents of Central 
Bedfordshire.  Reducing ASB leads to improved quality of life for communities in 
our area and also reduces demand on the services responding to victims and 
complaints of ASB. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 3



 Specific risks of not addressing ASB appropriately include: 

• Reputational risks, both with communities and partners, including poor 
public perception 

• Failure to meet Corporate objectives/required outcomes 

• Failure to discharge statutory responsibilities, and 

• Financial risks through increased demand on services to respond to 
incidents of ASB. 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

4. There are no immediate implications on staffing.  

Equalities/Human Rights: 

5. Public authorities have a statutory duty to promote equality of opportunity, 
eliminate unlawful discrimination and to foster good relations in respect of nine 
protected characteristics; age disability, gender re-assignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 

 Young people and vulnerable adults can be subject to more antisocial behaviour 
and crime than other members of the community.  National evidence highlights 
that there is also an under reporting of antisocial behaviour and that anti social 
behaviour can sometimes be motivated by a hatred of particular groups such as 
disabled people, black and minority ethnic communities or lesbian, gay, bisexual 
and transgender people.  The Community Safety Partnership has set up a Hate 
Crime Task and Finish Group which is giving further consideration to this issue. 

Public Health 

6. Reducing ASB leads to improvements in quality of life and facilitates a reduction 
in fear of crime which in turn can reduce social isolation amongst vulnerable 
groups, thereby impacting positively upon their health and wellbeing. 

Community Safety: 

7. Statutory duties are set out in the legal implications.  Reducing ASB is a council 
and Community Safety Partnership priority.  Quality of life is significantly affected 
by high levels of ASB and there are also environmental impacts.  By ensuring 
that ASB is reported and putting measures in place to support victims and take 
action against perpetrators demand on services is reduced, quality of life is 
improved, public confidence increases and fear of crime reduces.   

Sustainability: 

8. Sustainability relies upon improving the economic, social and environmental 
well-being of our area and the people who live in the area.  Being safe and 
feeling safe in an area supports the economic, social and environmental 
aspirations for Central Bedfordshire.   

Procurement: 

9. There are no procurement implications from this report. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny: 

10. This matter will be considered by Overview and Scrutiny on 15 October 2013 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  

The Committee is asked to consider and discuss the information set out in the 
report: 

Reason for 
Recommendation(s): 

To ensure that the committee has an overview of ASB in Central 
Bedfordshire  

 

Summary 

11. The Committee is being asked to consider and discuss the information set out in 
the report. 

 

Levels of ASB in Central Bedfordshire 

12. In March 2013 Bedfordshire Police introduced a new system for recording 
incidents.  The new system allows for the figures to be broken down by 
postcode. By using the postcode data it has been possible for the Councils’ 
Community Safety Analyst to break the figures into ward areas, with the 
exception of 65 incidents where a post code had not been recorded. 

13. As such, only the data recorded from April 2013 has been used for the ward 
breakdown in this report, providing a more detailed picture of ASB incidents in 
Central Bedfordshire.  

14. From April 2013 to August 2013 there were 3336 recorded incidents of ASB in 
Central Bedfordshire.  Appendix A shows the breakdown of these incidents 
ranked by ward. 

15. The highest recorded incidents of ASB are in Houghton Regis, Dunstable and 
Leighton Buzzard wards, with the lowest recorded incidents in Houghton 
Conquest and Haynes and Westoning, Flitton and Greenfield. 

16. Of the 3336 incidents recorded, 1268 are classified as ‘rowdy or inconsiderate’ 
behaviour and 1168 were for vehicle nuisance or abandoned vehicles.  In the 
main these incidents are one off complaints dealt with at a local level by 
partners including the police and council  

17. The remaining 900 recorded incidents are a mix of issues, including 250 
recorded as ‘nuisance neighbour’ disputes.  These types of cases are most 
likely to be addressed by the specialist ASB Teams at the council and 
Bedfordshire Police. 

18. Appendix B sets out ASB data for the whole of Central Bedfordshire from 
October 2012 to August 2013.  There were a total of 6882 recorded incidents.  
For the reasons set out in  paragraph 12 it is not possible to break this data 
down any further, and data prior to October 2012 has not been used because 
recording issues made the data unreliable. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 5



19. The data shows an upward trend in the number of recorded incidents over the 
last few months.  This upward trend is expected as recorded incidents of ASB 
are affected by  

• Weather – summer months see an increase in recorded incidents  

• School holidays – more young people out in the locality during these 
periods 

• Specific festivities – Christmas, New Year, Halloween and Bonfire Night. 

It is anticipated that September figures will show a decrease in the number of 
recorded incidents. 

Under reporting of ASB 

20. It is recognised that there will be under reporting of ASB in any area.  The 
reasons for under reporting are varied.  Some people feel that if reported ASB 
will not be dealt with or where they have reported they do not feel that there has 
been a satisfactory resolution/response.  In some cases people are reluctant to 
report incidents because they are concerned about possible reprisals if they 
become involved. 

21. It must also be recognised that what is perceived as ASB by some people may 
not be defined as ASB by the agencies that pick up these issues, for example, 
ball games on open space being reported as ASB.  However it also clear that 
where there is genuine ASB complainants should receive an appropriate 
response when reported. 

22. In the last two years agencies that take the lead on tackling ASB have seen 
reductions in their available resources, however taking a risk assessment 
approach to cases of ASB means that those at the most risk of harm receive the 
support needed using a multi-agency approach.  Within the resources that 
agencies have available to them this also ensures that resources are used as 
effectively as possible. 

Council Response to ASB 

23. The councils Medium Term Plan identifies ASB as a priority and has a reduction 
target to decrease levels of ASB recorded incident figures from 2011/2012 by 
10% to 2016. 

24. The council has a dedicated ASB Team which is part of the Community Safety 
Service.  The team has 3 officers covering the whole of Central Bedfordshire. 

25. 

 

The team respond to more complex cases of ASB either by direct referral or by 
referral through partner agencies.  From April 2012 to July 2013 the team has 
investigated 157 ASB cases as the lead agency.  The team have also supported 
the police Priority ASB Team on 79 cases since January 2013, when the police 
team were formed, in addition to giving advice and guidance to members of the 
public, other services and officers and external partners including other Registered 
Social Landlords. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 6



26. From April 2012 to July 2013 the team has organised and co-ordinated 125 
multi-agency Problem Solving Groups (PSG) for cases of ASB.  PSG’s are 
different from ASBRAC in that they are used to look at cases where the focus is 
not a high risk victim of ASB. It may look at a geographic area, or a particular 
type of ASB e.g. nuisance motorcycles aiming to identify solutions to the 
problems reported. 

27. The team also work on the Troubled Families programme providing support and 
taking the lead on appropriate cases, and also a lead role in assisting on the 
payment by results element of the programme. 

28. The team manages and co-ordinates the ASBRAC, introduced as part of the 
2011 review of ASB in Central Bedfordshire.  

29. The Council has commissioned Bedfordshire Youth Offending Service to 
implement an innovative pilot Restorative Justice programme to work in specific 
areas to support reductions of ASB.  Requests for this approach can be made by 
a range of partners. 

30. The ASB Team provide advice and guidance to other Registered Social 
Landlords on ASB cases, and works with them on more complex cases, 
particularly where the issues are cross-tenure 

31. The team have introduced on-line reporting of ASB incidents via the council 
website and are currently finalising a new Triage system which will allow them to 
easily identify victims that require an in depth risk assessment. 

32. The team co-ordinates and manages ASB cases going for prosecution for Anti 
Social Behaviour Orders and Injunctions as well as early intervention measures 
such as warning letters, Acceptable Behaviour Contracts and Restorative 
Justice. 

33. The Council also uses its redeployable CCTV cameras, using an evidence led 
approach, to gather information and evidence when investigating ASB cases. 

Police Response to ASB 

34. 

 

In 2010 Her Majesties Inspectorate of Constabularies (HMIC) found that forces 
have the best chance to give ASB victims a good service if they: 

• Identify if a caller is a vulnerable (for instance, elderly or disabled) or repeat 
victim as soon as they call the police, so they can get extra support; 

• Brief all relevant officers and staff regularly and thoroughly about local ASB 
issues; 

• Regularly gather and analyse data and information about ASB places, 
offenders and victims, and allocate resources to tackle specific problems; 
and 

• Provide their neighbourhood policing teams with the right tools and 
resources to tackle ASB. 

35. 

 

In response to the HMIC findings Bedfordshire Police have introduced a number 
of changes to the way in which they deal with ASB in the force as a whole and in 
Central Bedfordshire in particular. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 7



36. Since the HMIC report Bedfordshire Police have introduced an assessment 
process in the control room where the level of risk can be properly assessed at the 
point of contact.   

37. Bedfordshire Police have also set up a dedicated Priority ASB Team to deal with 
the highest risk cases throughout Central Bedfordshire. This team looks at each 
case in depth and uses a wide variety of tactics to resolve the issue, working 
closely with the Council ASB Team. 

38. A dedicated ASB computer application – SafetyNet, has also been implemented. 

39. The HMIC Inspection Team returned to Bedfordshire Police in May this year and 
although they have not yet released their full report the early indications to 
Bedfordshire Police are very positive. During the debrief at the end of their 
inspection, the inspectors said they found a fundamental change in the culture of 
the organisation towards ASB, which Bedfordshire Police have successfully 
brought to the ‘threat, harm and risk’ agenda and truly embedded among the Force 
priorities.  

40. The Inspectors were particularly impressed by the role and contribution of the 
PCSOs and the three Priority ASB Teams in Luton, Bedford and Central 
Bedfordshire, praising their work. Inspectors found Bedfordshire Police have 
made good strides in the Force Control Room (FCR) with the use of the Triage 
System and the introduction of STORM, a command and control system used for 
call handling and other applications, which now need to be embedded to make 
the overall service even more effective.  

41. However there was still some more work to be done in the FCR to fully capture 
vulnerability issues, as well as training Enquiry Staff in handling ASB issues 

Community Safety Partnership Response to ASB 

42. 

 

In 2011 the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) commissioned a multi-agency 
review of Central Bedfordshire’s response to anti-social behaviour, to identify 
gaps in service, and to develop an action plan to ensure that Central 
Bedfordshire’s response to anti-social behaviour is effective.   

43. The priority recommendations from the review were: 

• CSP to adopt a shared definition of ASB 

• Formalise key contacts for partner agencies and services 

• Consider how to more effectively identify repeat victimisation across 
agencies 

• Adopt a MARAC style approach for ASB Case Conferences 

• Carry out a gap analysis of prevention and diversionary activities  

• CSP to seek support of LSP to mitigate any negative impact of efficiency 
savings and restructures 

44. 

 

Following the review the CSP established a partnership group to progress the 
recommendations and as a result all of these recommendations have been 
implemented. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 8



45. The CSP has also provided funding to support the provision of mediation 
services for victims of ASB and also for security devices to help victims feel safer 
in their properties. 

46. The CSP has commissioned a review of the ASBRAC and the initial findings 
indicate that the key value of the ASBRAC has been that  

• The ASBRAC has demonstrably improved information sharing in order to 
increase the safety, health, and well being of the victims of anti-social 
behaviour. 

• The ASBRAC has supported agencies in jointly constructing and 
implementing risk management plans that provide professional support to 
all those at risk. However while agencies and services clearly believed that 
these plans reduced the risk of harm, the evaluation identified the need for 
a more robust monitoring process to assess impact. 

• No cases have been re-referred to ASBRAC to date and hence it could be 
said to reduce repeat victimisation. However, again more robust monitoring 
would enable the ASBRAC to demonstrate this with greater validity. 

• The ASBRAC has clearly improved agency co-ordination and accountability 
in relation to the most vulnerable ASB victims. In addition Interviewees felt 
that it had increased understanding of agency roles and promoted the 
benefits of partnership working. 

key areas for further development are: 

• The need to secure appropriate representation and input from mental health 
services 

• The need for the CSP to identify a resource to enable the implementation of 
Victim Care Plans to be monitored and evaluated 

• The need for the CSP to agree the most appropriate case management tool 
for ASBRAC cases.  

• The need to adopt a performance management framework that would 
enable the implementation of Victim Care Plans to be rigorously monitored 
and their impact to be evaluated. 

Appendices:  

 

Appendix A – Central Bedfordshire ASB Incidents reported to Bedfordshire Police 
ranked by ward 01/04/2013 – 31/08/2013 

Appendix B - Central Bedfordshire ASB Incidents reported to Bedfordshire Police 
between 1st October 2012 to 31 August 2013 inclusive by Month 

 

Background Papers: (open to public inspection)  

N/A 

Agenda Item 8
Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

Central Bedfordshire ASB Incidents reported to Bedfordshire Police 
ranked by ward 01/04/2013 – 31/08/2013 

 

Ward Apr 13 May 13 Jun 13 Jul 13 Aug 13 Total 

Houghton Hall 62 56 69 72 102 361 

Tithe Farm 30 40 61 87 38 256 

Dunstable Northfields 51 48 42 43 39 223 

Leighton Buzzard South 44 37 42 51 32 206 

Parkside 53 39 41 31 28 192 

Dunstable Central 28 26 36 52 42 184 

Leighton Buzzard North 30 23 21 32 39 145 

Sandy 18 19 35 32 38 142 

Arlesey 27 13 16 37 40 133 

Caddington 17 13 11 31 40 112 

Biggleswade South 16 17 21 34 22 110 

Dunstable Manshead 17 21 24 27 19 108 

Dunstable Icknield 22 16 22 22 23 105 

Toddington 20 11 28 25 20 104 

Flitwick 18 26 12 23 24 103 

Shefford  17 16 11 19 29 92 

Ampthill 15 13 13 36 13 90 

Stotfold & Langford 16 14 21 20 13 84 

Dunstable Watling 15 9 23 14 15 76 

Linslade 14 13 14 15 14 70 

Cranfield & Marston 14 8 8 15 20 65 

Eaton Bray 10 11 13 8 9 51 

Biggleswade North 6 8 6 16 9 45 

Heath & Reach 7 11 5 10 6 39 

Barton Le Clay 7 4 6 7 13 37 

Potton 6 5 7 8 6 32 

Northill  3 8 7 7 2 27 

Silsoe & Shillington 7 5 5 2 5 24 

Aspley & Woburn 2 6 3 7 6 24 

Agenda Item 8
Page 11



Westoning, Flitton & Greenfield 2 2 1 3 8 16 

Houghton Conquest & Haynes 1 4 2 4 4 15 

Unknown 12 5 13 15 20 65 

Totals 607 547 639 805 738 3336 

 

The above data has been provided by Bedfordshire Police, the data has been broken 
down by ward using the “location postcode” data which has been cross referred 
against Central Bedfordshire Council’s Postcode List (January 2011). 

 

65 incidents between 01/04/2013 – 31/08/2013 are shown as “Unknown” as no 
postcode data has been provided and these are unable to be accurately allocated to a 
ward. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 12



Appendix B 

 

Central Bedfordshire ASB Incidents reported to Bedfordshire Police 
between 1st October 2012 to 31 August 2013 inclusive by Month 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Month Oct 12 Nov 12 Dec 12 Jan 13 Feb 13 Mar 13 Apr 13 May 13 Jun 13 Jul 13 Aug 13 TOTAL 

No 660 573 610 717 533 453 607 547 639 805 738 6882 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13

Agenda Item 8
Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour
	Anti-Social Behaviour (Appendices)


